BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET

MINUTES OF CHILDREN, ADULTS, HEALTH AND WELLBEING POLICY
DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY PANEL MEETING

Tuesday, 14th July, 2020

Present:- Councillors Vic Pritchard, Michelle O'Doherty, Jess David, Ruth Malloy,
Mark Roper, Andy Wait, Paul May and Eleanor Jackson

Co-opted Member: Kevin Burnett

Also in attendance: Lesley Hutchinson (Director of Adult Social Care, Complex and
Specialist Commissioning), Dr Brynn Bird (BaNES Locality Clinical Chair), Mary Kearney-
Knowles (Director of Children & Young People), Chris Wilford (Director of Education,
Inclusion and Children’s Safeguarding) Helen Hoynes (School Organisation Manager),
Sarah Watts (Complaints & Data Protection Team Manager),

Councillor Rob Appleyard, Cabinet Member for Adult Services
Councillor Kevin Guy, Cabinet Member for Children’s Services

1 WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS

The Chairman welcomed Panel members and officers who were attending the
meeting via Zoom and members of the public viewing on YouTube.

He announced that the meeting was being held under The Local Authorities and
Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and
Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020. He stated that the
Council had agreed a protocol to cover virtual meetings and that this meeting would
operate in line with that protocol. He explained that the meeting had the same status
and validity as a meeting held in the Guildhall.

2 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS
Councillor Liz Hardman, David Williams (Co-opted Member), Chris Batten (Co-opted
Member) and Mike Bowden (Corporate Director) had sent their apologies to the

Panel.

Councillor Eleanor Jackson was present for the duration of the meeting as a
substitute for Councillor Hardman.

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Paul May declared an other interest in respect of agenda item 13
(Corporate Director’s Briefing) as he is a hon-executive Sirona board member.

4 TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIRMAN

There was none.

Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Tuesday, 14th July, 2020



5 ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC OR COUNCILLORS - TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS,
STATEMENTS, PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE BUSINESS OF
THIS MEETING

Shiva Page submitted a question to the Panel as follows:

Is it accepted and usual practice for an employee in the CCG who is a Commissioner
of a service to advise said service to withdraw a particular service from a service
user?

Dr Brynn Bird, BaNES locality Clinical Chair reply (on behalf of the Panel / CCG):

It is hard to comment on this question without greater clarity of the circumstances
being described. Commissioners would not generally be making decisions about
individuals and their access to specific services, however there are CCG policies and
procedures in place for decision-making in respect of certain treatments and services
the CCG does and doesn’t fund (https://www.bswccqg.nhs.uk/your-health/what-we-
do-and-don-t-fund).

It would be helpful to better understand the specific circumstances that have
prompted the question (which would not be appropriate to explore in this public
meeting) so that we can provide a more specific answer. We would ask Shiva Page
to contact the CCG either by email BSWCCG.feedback@nhs.net or tel 0300 123
2103 or 0300 01304762 so that this can be looked into or alternatively we can ask a
member of our Patient Advice & Liaison Team to make contact with Shiva. It would
therefore be helpful to know which Shiva would prefer. For transparency, we can
report back to the PDS committee in future on the answer provided.

6 MINUTES - 10TH MARCH 2020
The Chair referred to the question from Kevin Burnett regarding if any further
information was yet available from the Secretary of State on the issue of funding
pressures in the education system and asked for an updated response from officers.

He also asked for confirmation as to whether maternity services in Paulton had
ceased in April.

Councillor Andrew Wait said that he had not yet had a response to his request for a
year on year breakdown of the Virgin Care budget balance.

The Director of Adult Social Care, Complex and Specialist Commissioning replied
that an update report was due to be presented to the Panel in September and said
that this information would be covered in the report.

Councillor Eleanor Jackson asked if the role of the registered nurse within the CCG
had been filled.

The Director of Adult Social Care, Complex and Specialist Commissioning and Dr
Brynn Bird replied that they would seek a response to this question.

The Panel were informed subsequently that this position had been filled.

Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Tuesday, 14th July, 2020


https://www.bswccg.nhs.uk/your-health/what-we-do-and-don-t-fund
https://www.bswccg.nhs.uk/your-health/what-we-do-and-don-t-fund
mailto:BSWCCG.feedback@nhs.net

Councillor Jackson asked how many panel members had now been recruited to the
Our Health Our Future panel.

The Director of Adult Social Care, Complex and Specialist Commissioning and Dr
Brynn Bird replied that they would seek a response to this question.

The Panel were informed subsequently that over 800 panellists had signed up and
that some more would be welcome as part of an ongoing recruitment campaign.
More details can be found here:
https://bswccg.nhs.uk/news-events/news/324-public-invited-to-have-its-say-on-local-
health-and-care-as-part-of-new-interactive-citizens-panel

With these comments in mind the Panel confirmed the minutes of the previous
meeting as a true record.

7 CABINET MEMBER UPDATE

Councillor Rob Appleyard, Cabinet Member for Adult Services addressed the Panel.
A copy of the update can be found on their Minute Book and as an online appendix
to these minutes, a summary of the update is set out below.

Covid

The Covid pandemic has been a challenging time for everybody. | would like to take
this opportunity to acknowledge again the brilliant efforts of the many individual staff
and partner organisations across the Council, NHS, Third Sector, Virgin Care, and
many more, who have gone the extra mile and worked tirelessly to respond to the
unprecedented and rapidly changing circumstances in which the world has found
itself. The work of Recovery and Renewal is now proceeding and we need to
consider how we can continue to work together to sustain some of the positive
initiatives, like the Compassionate Communities Hub, which has provided help to
many people in a time of need.

Local Outbreak Management Plan

As we move into the next phase of the response to Covid, it has been important to
agree a plan for the way in which any outbreaks will be managed locally. The
development of this plan has been led by Dr Bruce Laurence, Director of Public
Health and | was pleased to endorse it both through the Health & Wellbeing Board
and Cabinet.

Care and Support Charging and Financial Assessment Framework

This framework, which was approved by Council as part of the budget-setting
process in February, has been implemented since the panel last met. Whilst there
have of course been some queries along the way, | am pleased to say it has largely
gone very smoothly and | would like to reiterate my thanks to officers involved in
what has been a massive piece of work ‘behind the scenes’.

Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Tuesday, 14th July, 2020


https://bswccg.nhs.uk/news-events/news/324-public-invited-to-have-its-say-on-local-health-and-care-as-part-of-new-interactive-citizens-panel
https://bswccg.nhs.uk/news-events/news/324-public-invited-to-have-its-say-on-local-health-and-care-as-part-of-new-interactive-citizens-panel

Councillor Eleanor Jackson asked for the contribution that independent pharmacies
have made during the pandemic to be noted.

Councillor Appleyard replied that it should indeed be noted and that he was aware of
their work through the Compassionate Communities Hub.

Councillor Jess David asked if the Council were preparing yet for the upcoming
Winter challenges alongside tackling the problems of Covid.

Councillor Appleyard replied that the Council will not be complacent and that he felt
that the Winter pressures could come in a different form to normal. He added that he
has already made enquiries regarding stocks of PPE for Care Homes and Hospitals.

Councillor Michelle O’'Doherty asked if adequate Covid testing was taking place
within our care homes. She also asked if the Council was sure that nobody was now
being discharged from hospital to our care homes without being tested first.
Councillor Appleyard replied that he believed that testing was taking place in care
homes and in hospitals prior to being discharged to a care home. He added that he
would seek confirmation on that.

The Director of Adult Social Care, Complex and Specialist Commissioning added
that she understood that care home patients were tested for the virus every 28 days
and that staff were tested weekly. She said that care homes could approach the
CCG / Council if they need further PPE.

The Panel were informed subsequently that individuals coming out of hospital and
into care homes are being tested and it is recorded by the Trusted Assessor — the
Trusted Assessor is the person employed to assess people and share their needs
with the care homes so that the care homes don’t need to assess themselves. They
trust the assessment.

With regard to individuals in care homes 65+ being tested — consent is required from
staff and residents, so it is not compulsory it is voluntary but is encouraged. For
people who lack capacity the MCA needs to be complied with.

Councillor Appleyard wished to thank the Public Health Team for securing a mobile
Covid testing facility for two weeks that had on average carried out 100 tests a day.

The Chair agreed and himself congratulated all who have been involved in our local
services and residents for their work and the way they have responded to the
pandemic.

Councillor Paul May asked for the Director of Public Health to attend the next
meeting of the Panel so that information can be shared about preparations for a
possible second wave and other matters.

The Panel agreed with this proposal.

Councillor Kevin Guy, Cabinet Member for Children’s Services addressed the Panel.

A copy of the update can be found on their Minute Book and as an online appendix
to these minutes, a summary of the update is set out below.

Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Tuesday, 14th July, 2020



Covid

| would like to acknowledge the way in which children, young people and their
families have responded to the enforced change of daily routine and educational
experience that has been necessary as a result of Covid. Schools and Early Years
settings have adapted brilliantly to the evolving situation and our own teams have
found new ways of working, such as introducing a rotating social care duty
arrangement, expansion of the role of the virtual school to support a much wider
group of vulnerable children to continue to engage in education (we have seen good
attendance rates for eligible pupils during Covid) and the rapid roll out of on-line
music lessons.

Partnership working

While we have had to make some very tough decisions to recover our financial
position due to the impact of Covid-19 we have also worked hard on some innovative
solutions with many partners.

We commission services from a range of charities and organisations to support
vulnerable children and young people and the financial recovery plan agreed by
Cabinet included a reduction in the amounts available for some of these services. |
am delighted that the St John's Foundation has agreed in principle to use its
resources to benefit vulnerable children who might have been affected by these
reductions. This support will be formalised with the relevant providers and will form
part of the wider work, which St Johns will be implementing in Bath and North East
Somerset as part of its recently-launched Foundation Fund to ensure we continue to
protect and support children and young people in our community.

Young People’s webinar

| was delighted to join a webinar with the Leader, Chief Executive and some of our
Directors last Monday, where a panel of young people shared their experiences and
views on lockdown and some of their priorities for moving forward. It is important for
us to hear the voices of our younger residents and we need to make sure we are
responding to the issues that they raise and that we continue to listen.

Councillor Paul May asked what role Schools were playing in supporting our
disadvantaged communities and if Academies in the area had enough PPE.

Councillor Guy replied that he believed local Academies were seeking help from
Council officers and the Government directly with regard to PPE. He added that he
felt that local schools were doing a fantastic job to support all their respective
communities. He added that approaches will differ in some respects from site to site
but that each will try carry out the guidance given as best they can.

The Director of Education, Inclusion and Children’s Safeguarding added that there
will be some funding from the Government given to all schools to assist with helping
pupils catch up on their learning. He said that work was continuing with all Schools
and Academies to open as normally as possible from September.

Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Tuesday, 14th July, 2020



Kevin Burnett asked if any further comment could be given on the impact the current
situation will have on Commissioned Services.

Councillor Guy replied that the Council was awaiting the Board of the St John's
Foundation to formally approve the list of services that was proposed to them. He
added that he would share that information with the Panel once it had been
confirmed.

Councillor Eleanor Jackson commented that she was aware that in some cases
locally a family’s access to learning through the internet was only via a parent’s
mobile phone. She added that she was concerned that pupils from Radstock that
attend Kilmersdon School in Mendip have received no form of education since
lockdown and said that it appeared unlikely to reopen in September and asked what
could be done to help those pupils.

The Director of Education, Inclusion and Children’s Safeguarding replied that he was
aware that educational packs had been prepared where required within our
maintained schools for those pupils without adequate internet access. He added that
he would follow up to find out further information in relation to local pupils attending
Kilmersdon School.

Councillor Jackson asked how Youth Services were keeping in touch with vulnerable
young people and children.

The Director for Children & Young People replied that Youth Services were
continuing in a number of hot spot areas to try to respond to local needs. She added
that she was aware that the Connecting Families team were working on securing
grants for IT equipment.

Councillor Jackson asked what face-to-face contact has been able to continue during
the crisis and what are the priorities for Children’s Centres moving forward.

The Director for Children & Young People replied that Children’s Centres had
remained open for the entire period and has carried face-to-face meetings either via
Zoom or doorstep visits. She added that online courses are being promoted to those
that are able alongside health programmes and parent drop-in sessions. She said
that she felt that priorities were still with responding to and adapting to the ongoing
crisis and facilitating the provision of food parcels for those families struggling with
food poverty.

The Chair asked how have young people engaged with some of the new
approaches.

The Director for Children & Young People replied that Social Workers have
continued to work with all families with a small number of them being based in the
office. She said that the majority of young people have embraced the use of
technology such as Zoom / WhatsApp and that the work of the Virtual School has
been invaluable.

Kevin Burnett asked if any information relating to topics discussed at the Young
People’s webinar could be shared with the Panel.

Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Tuesday, 14th July, 2020



The Director for Children & Young People replied that topics such as Mental Health,
Transport, Attainment Gaps, Curriculum and Slavery were discussed. She said that
the plan was to continue with these webinars where possible.

The Director of Adult Social Care, Complex and Specialist Commissioning said that
a new Children & Young People’s Plan was being developed and that this would be
brought to the Panel in due course.

The Chairman thanked Councillor Appleyard and Councillor Guy for their updates on
behalf of the Panel and the officers for assisting with replies to questions raised by
the Panel.

8 BSW CCG UPDATE
Dr Brynn Bird, B&NES Locality Clinical Chair addressed the Panel. A copy of the
update can be found on their Minute Book and as an online appendix to these

minutes, a summary of the update is set out below.

Merger of Bath and North east Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire CCGs

The merger of Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire CCGs took
place on 15t of April 2020.

The newly merged CCG serves a combined population of 934,000 and will maintain
its roots in local communities and continue to be driven by local clinicians from the
94 practices across Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire (BSW).

Operating at scale across BSW means strategically commissioning services and
reducing variation in care so everyone receives high quality treatment, regardless of
where they live.

BSW CCG, as part of the wider BSW STP Partnership, is working towards becoming
an Integrated Care System (ICS) by April 2021 and will be assessed by NHS
England in November.

Response to coronavirus

As part of our initial response to coronavirus, BSW CCG quickly established an
Incident Coordination Centre to oversee our health response to the pandemic.

An organisation-wide response to manage coronavirus was also introduced with new
work-stream programme management arrangements to ensure a focus on
maintaining critical services.

In BaNES, Swindon and Wiltshire, a Community Response Hub was established to

provide a local response to coronavirus and to support community services and care
home providers.

Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Tuesday, 14th July, 2020



Reset and recovery of local services post coronavirus

Services across all providers in BSW were significantly scaled back during the start
of the coronavirus pandemic, following the government’s decision to pause all non-
urgent healthcare services and redirect 100 per cent of the NHS’s efforts and
resources into responding to what was, and still is, an unprecedented challenge.

However, at the end of April 2020, following a sustained period during which the
number of confirmed cases of coronavirus continued to fall, Simon Stevens, Chief
Executive of NHS England, issued an open letter that requested all NHS systems to
use the next six weeks to look at restarting non-urgent activity.

Work is underway across BSW to find the best approach to restarting, resetting and
recovering our services, bearing in mind all of the time, that we need to reassure the
public that services are always available for those in need and that services are
clean and safe to use.

We will do this through a coordinated communications approach using social media,
radio interviews, print and online coverage, videos and paid-for advertising. Working
closely with both clinical and commissioner colleagues, the CCG will produce
messaging and content specific to cancer, cardiovascular, mental health, maternity
and outpatient services.

Nightingale hospital

Another part of the local response to coronavirus was the rapid building and opening
of a new Nightingale hospital at the University of West of England Frenchay campus
in Bristol. The new facility is one of seven across the country.

Work began on the 300 bed facility on 3 April and the unit officially opened less than
three week later. The extra capacity was put in place so that existing hospitals in
BSW and across the whole South West would be able to cope with the anticipated
spike in demand while still meeting the needs of existing patients.

Black Lives Matter response

The Black Lives Matter (BLM) movement has gained prominence over the past few
months and has highlighted the inequalities that exist for Black, Asian and Ethnic
Minority Communities, an issue which has become even more important considering
the high proportion of members of BAME communities that have been affected and
are at increased risk from coronavirus.

BSW CCG has been active in its response to this issue. We were one of a number of
organisations across B&NES to pledge support for the campaign via a joint
statement alongside Bath & North East Somerset Council, the RUH, Curo, the
University of Bath, Bath Spa University and Avon and Somerset Police and Avon
Fire and Rescue Service.

Councillor Eleanor Jackson asked if it was known when services at Paulton Hospital
would return to normal.

Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Tuesday, 14th July, 2020



Dr Brynn Bird replied that he was aware that shielding and infection control was still
in place on site and that there was no access to regular walk-in facilities, such as X-
rays. He added that he could not give a timeline at this stage for when services
would return to normal.

Councillor Jackson commented that she was concerned at the lack of cancer
screening appointments that were taking place.

Dr Bird replied that the two week wait pathway had not changed, but acknowledged
that numbers were down and that this had been expected. He said that as much as
possible they have been trying to say to members of the public that it is business as
normal for many services.

Councillor Jess David asked what plans were being put in place to administer the
Winter Flu Vaccine over the coming months.

Dr Brynn Bird replied that the CCG have been pro-active on this issue and are
seeking to put plans in place. He said that this may come in the form of specific
Saturday appointments or provision of the use of alternative sites. He added that
discussions were ongoing with all surgeries.

Kevin Burnett asked if he knew what autonomy Public Health has locally to direct
operations during the ongoing crisis.

Dr Brynn Bird replied that there was a degree of local autonomy and that specific
responses had been put in place following meetings of the Health Protection
Committee that meets weekly.

Kevin Burnett asked if any other uses have been considered for the Nightingale
Hospital whilst it is not active in terms of the pandemic.

Dr Bird replied that some proposals have been considered but added that none of
these had been resource light.

Councillor Paul May asked for his view on cross boundary joint working
arrangements and integration.

Dr Bird replied that he worked across multiple borders and said that the focus on
integration was Mental Health, Physical Health and Social Care.

The Chairman thanked him on behalf of the Panel for his update.

9 CHILDREN'S SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

The Director of Children & Young People introduced this report to the Panel. She
explained that B&NES had a full Ofsted Inspection in 2017 under the Single
Inspection Framework (SIF) and that Ofsted assessed B&NES to be GOOD overall,
with some areas for further improvement. She added that the report details our
improvement journey to date since 2017, ensuring that a consistently high-quality

Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Tuesday, 14th July, 2020



service is provided to keep vulnerable children and their families safe and supported
in B&NES.

She highlighted to the Panel the recommendations from 2017 Single Inspection
Framework and the areas for improvement as described in the Ofsted Focused Visit
for Care Leavers in November 2019.

She stated that in relation to the recommendations and areas for improvement, the
service had recently revised the Quality Assurance Framework setting out our
values, standards and the range of assurance activity; providing a structure and
further supporting the work of the Service Improvement Board (SIB).

She informed the Panel that a new moderating process for audit activity was
introduced which was aimed at supporting a consistent application of Ofsted
gradings in service audits, whilst also raising the quality standard of auditing from
which to draw learning. All managers, Heads of Service, the Director, Principle
Social Worker and some IRO’s carry out bi-monthly audits around agreed areas of
practice and findings are disseminated across the service and taken to the Service
Improvement Board.

She explained that a review of the front door system post inspection was undertaken
that informed changes, processes and functionality. She added that this is now being
further improved with the help of an internal cross-council Improving How We Work
Project that is working with the Service to streamline and support better access to
the right level of support at the right time more easily for individuals and
professionals alike.

She said that the Ofsted Focused Visit for Care Leavers in 2019 validated progress
in several areas for our Care Leavers since the SIF inspection 2017. Inspectors
noted that the quality and timeliness of visiting and intervention had improved,
keeping in touch arrangements are successful and the introduction of a dedicated
Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking (UASC) worker was also recognised as a great
resource by inspectors with exciting possibilities ahead for this aspect of the service.

She stated that the Virtual School had worked tremendously hard to reduce the
number of fixed term exclusions for Children in Care and that this number has
reduced but remains an ongoing area of focus for the team.

She informed the Panel that Children’s Social Care have a successful ASYE
programme for newly qualified social workers and a good retainment rate on
completion of this programme, although across the service generally, recruitment
remains a challenge. She added that it is hoped that the re-design will not only
support better outcomes for children and their families but will also be more effective
at supporting staff satisfaction and wellbeing impacting on staff retainment.

She said that colleagues in the Commissioning Service are also driving
improvements in relation to oversight of our Early Help services and holding the
service to account in relation to the Service Level Agreement, ensuring high quality
services are available to support families in B&NES meeting the need at the point of
contact and preventing escalation.

10
Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Tuesday, 14th July, 2020



She stated that the key areas of focus in the Service Improvement Plan for 2020 is to
build upon good practice already in place and enhance service areas which have
been highlighted either by learning from local feedback, QA activity, National
learning or from Inspection.

Councillor Paul May commented that the report highlights the good work of the
service area and praised the Director of Children & Young People, Corporate
Director and all staff involved.

Councillor Andrew Wait said that through working in education for a number of years
he knew how difficult it was to work with those young people who were NEET (Not in
Education, Employment, or Training) and said that he felt this was an area that the
Council will need to work on. He added that he would be interested in receiving the
information described as Annex A (data information required for inspection) dry runs.

The Director of Children & Young People replied that she was aware of the potential
impact that Covid may have on training for young people and that she could provide
Annex A as requested.

Councillor Eleanor Jackson asked how the Panel can be assured that Social
Workers have a manageable caseload and effective management supervisions.

The Director of Children & Young People replied that the redesign of the Service has
reduced caseloads directly and in terms of supervision, regular 1-2-1s are held
alongside Team Management meetings. She added that reflective case discussions
are also held as well as bi-monthly audits.

Councillor Jackson asked how child protection plans are being improved.

The Director of Children & Young People replied that they are now being co-
produced with families and Social Workers together and that where possible Family
Group Conferences are pursued.

Councillor Jackson asked does the unifying framework avoid drift and delay.

The Director of Children & Young People replied that it is very much the aspiration of
the Service that it will enhance the model that we offer.

Kevin Burnett commented that whilst acknowledging the level of detail within the
report he would have a welcomed a summary of targets for quick reference.

The Panel RESOLVED to;

() Recognise the continuous, formal and co-ordinated approach to Service
Improvement

(i) Receive this general progress report, and specific update on areas that
Required Improvement in 2017

(i) Note the work undertaken in preparation for the next Ofsted Inspection.

11
Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Tuesday, 14th July, 2020



10

BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET COUNCIL SCHOOL ORGANISATION
PLAN 2019 - 2025

The Director of Education, Inclusion and Children’s Safeguarding introduced the
report and said that it seeks to provide reassurance of the number of school places
available over the coming years. He added that there was a separate process for
planning for places for those pupils with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities
(SEND).

The School Organisation Manager explained that due to the delivery of new schools
and school expansions over recent years and to further expansions and new schools
under construction and planned, primary school provision is expected to be sufficient
for future pupil numbers arising from underlying population growth up to 2023 and
housing development allocated in the Core Strategy period.

She informed the Panel that in most areas, existing secondary school provision is
expected to be sufficient for future pupil numbers arising from underlying population
growth up to 2025 and housing development allocated in the Core Strategy period.
She said that additional capacity is expected to be required in the Greater Bath
Consortium Planning area and the Norton Hill Planning area.

She added that should a shortfall of secondary school places be projected as a
result of future proposed new housing development identified in the Local Plan, the
Authority will apply CIL funding or seek S106 Developer Contributions to provide
additional school places and that these places are likely to be delivered via the
expansion of existing schools.

The Chairman commented that he was aware that Chew Valley Secondary School
could expect a further 500 pupils in total.

The School Organisation Manager replied that this was a significant number but that
most of those pupils will likely to be living outside of the school’s catchment area, so
Chew Valley had sufficient capacity for B&NES residents.

Councillor Eleanor Jackson said that the impact of the Mendip Local Plan if approved
would be considerable as it would potentially allow 515 new dwellings on the border
of Westfield and Midsomer Norton. She added that around 180 of these dwellings
would be in close proximity to Westfield Primary School.

She stated that Section 106 and CIL funding does not follow the pupils across
Council boundaries.

She said that she believed that the information provided on page 56 of the report
was out of date as the Radstock Railway Line housing development had already
been completed and that permission for the approved Old Pit Yard, Clandown had
lapsed.

She said that the application for further housing at the former MoD Ensleigh site
referred to in the Plan had recently been turned down by the Planning Committee.

12

Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Tuesday, 14th July, 2020



11

She asked, referring to Whitchurch, where children might be displaced to Bristol,
what agreement do we have in place to ensure that spaces will be available in Bristol
for these children.

The School Organisation Manager replied that the displaced primary age pupils
would be expected to be Bristol residents and therefore the responsibility of Bristol
City Council. Also that cross border communication with school place planning
colleagues in Bristol is ongoing and constructive. Whitchurch is served by
Broadlands School for secondary, where there is sufficient capacity. She added that
they do work closely with colleagues in Planning Policy in terms of recognising new
housing developments and the impact they might have on the capacity of their local
schools.

She said that the application for a small number of further dwellings on the former
MoD site may possibly be resubmitted, perhaps in a slightly different format.

Councillor Andrew Wait asked if Covid-19 was to have any effect on the planned
opening of the two proposed new schools in September 2020.

The School Organisation Manager replied that both the new 420 place Free School,
Two Rivers C of E Primary and the new 630 place Free School, Norton Hill Primary
were due to open in September 2020 and both initially with a PAN of 30.

The Panel RESOLVED to;

(i)  Note the proposed strategy for the provision of school places within the
2019 — 2025 Plan period.

(i)  Note the proposed strategy for the provision of school places within the
Core Strategy period.

(i)  Note that the LA has undertaken significant planning and investment for
increasing capacity for children with SEND. These developments can be
viewed via links in the Plan document.

(iv)  Note that future iterations of the LA’s Plan will include planning for children
with SEND, but the Panel is reassured that significant planning and
delivery for children with SEND in Bath and North East Somerset has been
undertaken.

ADULT'S SOCIAL CARE - COMPLAINTS ANNUAL REVIEW

The Complaints & Data Protection Team Manager introduced this report to the
Panel. She explained that the report sets out the number of complaints, compliments
and concerns received between April 2019 and March 2020. She informed the Panel
that a total of 55 complaints were received; 12 of these complaints were referred to
Virgin Care for investigation and four enquiries were received from the Local
Government and Social Care Ombudsman.

13

Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Tuesday, 14th July, 2020



She added that the report details the type of complaint received, the response to
these complaints and the actions taken by services to ensure learning is derived
from the complaints and related feedback.

The Chairman commented with regard to section 6.7 of the report and the two
complaints that concerned self-funders accessing extra care schemes which resulted
in a change of decision. He asked if the change was in their favour.

The Complaints & Data Protection Team Manager replied that it was in favour of the
complainant.

The Chairman asked if the complaints referred to at 6.9 and 7.5 of the report were
from people who were possibly new to the process.

The Complaints & Data Protection Team Manager replied that she couldn’t recall,
but said that a lot of complaints are received regarding care and support funding.
She said that often it can be a misunderstanding and therefore there is a need for
better communication between both parties.

Councillor Eleanor Jackson that it was striking the number of complaints that were
due to processes and said that this must be an area to improve on.

The Complaints & Data Protection Team Manager replied that the report does dwell
on process, but was encouraged that complaints were not generally being received
with regard to visits and service delivery.

Councillor Ruth Malloy asked if further information could be supplied regarding the
system for responding to MP and Councillor enquiries.

The Complaints & Data Protection Team Manager replied that she would be happy
to produce something for the Panel.

The Panel RESOLVED to note the contents of the report.
12 FOOD POVERTY

The Public Health Development & Commissioning Manager introduced the report to
the Panel. She informed them that the B&NES Food Poverty Steering group had met
three times to date with its first meeting on 25" March 2020. She explained that as
its inaugural meeting was at the start of the government lockdown period in response
to the coronavirus pandemic the main focus was on understanding the challenges
emerging for residents in relation to immediate food needs and provision of welfare
support.

She added that the Steering Group has provided a network for members to share
information, co-ordinate activity and both offer and request support in adapting to a
rapidly changing situation and growing demand locally.

She said that the Steering Group had agreed its Terms of Reference and a
framework for structuring planning and action on food poverty locally.

14
Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Tuesday, 14th July, 2020



She added that discussions have taken place with Steering Group members around
specific themes outlined in the framework including identity and structure of the
group, food for all priorities and barriers to income. She said that it has been agreed
that ownership for delivery of these actions is led by three task groups;

e Income Maximisation
e Food for All
e Hear My Voice

She stated that these task groups will guide and develop the work and report back to
the steering group at each meeting on progress, challenges and support needs.

She informed the Panel that the key areas around Data and Communications will be
co-ordinated by Public Health in the short term with support from Steering Group
members.

She explained that members of the Steering Group, our colleagues in the
Compassionate Communities Hub and local charities and community groups have
seen significant increases in demand for support with food and income related
issues over the last 3 months.

She said that Council welfare support team received 956 applications for financial
assistance from April to mid-June and 580 awards were approved. Grants totalling
£43,000 have been awarded of which £11,000 was for food and £32,000 on
essential household provisions.

She added that St John’s Foundation have awarded 366 grants since January 2020
as part of their individual funding programme, totalling £204,000.

She stated that the Council welcomed the Government’s decision to fund free school
meal provision throughout the upcoming school summer holiday period.

The Chairman commented that when the Panel began to work on this issue it
seemed ambitious, but congratulated those involved for the great work that had been
done so far.

Councillor Eleanor Jackson asked what is going to happen next, to fill in the
remainder of the Action Plan.

The Public Health Development & Commissioning Manager replied that the Steering
Group will continue to meet on a quarterly basis with most of the remaining work
being undertaken by task groups on specific themes. She added that these task
groups will then report back to the Steering Group.

Councillor Jackson asked where the Action Plan states Review the cap on welfare
support provision and criteria for support to meet increasing demand/better meet
need is this about local welfare support, and do we have the resource to meet
increased demand.

15
Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Tuesday, 14th July, 2020



The Public Health Development & Commissioning Manager replied that there is a
cap on the number of requests and that there is a grant of £143,000 to be spent this
financial year.

Councillor Jackson asked how the Steering Group will capture evidence from those
people who have experienced food poverty.

The Public Health Development & Commissioning Manager replied that they were
already engaged with Curo and the local Children’s Centres on this matter and will
consult bodies such as the Feeding Britain Network and Sustain to attempt to gather
people’s personal experiences.

Kevin Burnett asked if local religious groups could be allowed to become involved in
the work of the Steering Group.

The Public Health Development & Commissioning Manager replied that she would
welcome any representation from such groups.

Kevin Burnett asked if the Steering Group had used social media much during their
work so far to make the public aware of the support available.

The Public Health Development & Commissioning Manager replied that the process
for a Communications Plan had begun and that as many avenues as possible should
be used.

Councillor Jackson commented that she could help with contact details for local
religious groups as she was a member of SACRE (Standing Advisory Council on
Religious Education).

Councillor Ruth Malloy thanked the officers for their work on this project and the
report supplied. She said that the Steering Group meetings have been very good
and that the timing of when this work began has really helped over the past few
months when the focus has been on emergency help.

Councillor Jess David said that the decision to fund free school meals over the
summer holiday period was vital. She added that she hoped that free fruit and
vegetable snacks would continue at schools for those that are eligible.

Councillor Rob Appleyard said that he welcomed the work that had been carried out
and that the Council would provide resources where it could as this was an important
issue to them.

The Panel RESOLVED to welcome and note the Draft Food Poverty Action Plan
2020/2021.

16
Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Tuesday, 14th July, 2020



13

PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES STRATEGIC DIRECTOR'S BRIEFING

The Director of Adult Social Care, Complex and Specialist Commissioning
introduced this item to the Panel. A copy of the briefing can be found on their Minute
Book and as an online appendix to these minutes, a summary is set out below.

Working with Ofsted and DfE

During the lockdown we have continued to be in regular communication with both
DfE and Ofsted, who have been monitoring the attendance of vulnerable children at
school and we have been able to share any emerging issues and concerns. Ofsted
have suspended their normal inspection regime, although they look set to
recommence some visits in the autumn.

St Martins Hospital office accommodation

We had already planned to move staff currently based at St Martins to other Council
offices which can offer better quality and more flexible facilities for staff. With most
staff working remotely during the lockdown period, the office ‘move’ will now be
going ahead in the coming weeks without staff returning to their previous desks.
Future working arrangements are being looked at across the Council and it is most
likely that staff will have a future base at Keynsham Civic Centre or the Hollies, but
with an increased emphasis on flexible and home working. CCG colleagues are also
looking at their future accommodation arrangements and the aim will be to ensure
colleagues working in our integrated commissioning teams can still work alongside
each other as appropriate.

Update on transfer of Community Resource Centres and Extra Care Housing
Support

Financial service model: The current annual contract value is £6.776m. Financial
due diligence work has been completed to ensure the transfer costs remain within
the current contract value and that we have a full appreciation of the financial risks.
However, ongoing operating pressures mean that the budget will remain a challenge.
However, in balance to this the Council will benefit from its tax status particularly in
relation to VAT, greater purchasing power, procurement capacity and skills, and
direct responsibility for maintaining occupancy.

Bank worker system: The council does not currently operate a bank worker
system. To have an in-house bank system presents a real opportunity for council.
Once established this could offer a wider role as an alternative or additional avenue
to manage temporary staff within the council. It has been agreed that Sirona will
provide the system for up to six months from transfer. This will allow time for the
council to create or contract a bank system operational from April 2021, ensuring
minimal disruption at the point of transfer.

Community Engagement:

e Engagement with staff group: We have engaged with staff using face to
face, and recently teleconferencing, meetings with union representatives and
staff. They have used dedicated email boxes for questions from staff,
residents and carers and other stakeholders. Staff have received regular
briefings giving an update on the transfer and answering any questions. The
formal Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations

17

Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Tuesday, 14th July, 2020



(TUPE) for staff consultation commenced on 15 June for 30 days. Staff are in
the main positive about transferring to the council.

e Engagement with residents: All residents received a letter in January
informing them of the decision to transfer the services in house and offering
meetings including relatives and carers. Further communications will be
shared by letter and newsletter to update them in July 2020.

e Engagement with stakeholders and wider community: Regular updates
have been facilitated for the Registered Social Landlords (who own the Extra
Care Housing Services) and providers who operate Day Services within the
CRCs. The council’s website has displayed news on the project for the wider
community. Future development of services will have wider engagement
including on the use of CRCs and expansion of Extra Care Housing services.

A full Equalities Impact has been regularly updated through the life of the project.

Councillor Eleanor Jackson commented that the coming year could be potentially
difficult given the Government’s recent decision to not include carers on their points-
based immigration system.

The Director of Adult Social Care, Complex and Specialist Commissioning replied
that this was disappointing and that the Council would make sure as much as it could
that they have enough resources in place.

The Chairman thanked her for the briefing on behalf of the Panel.

14 PANEL WORKPLAN

The Chairman introduced this item and asked for comments from the Panel on the
workplan.

Councillor Eleanor Jackson suggested that the Panel receive a report from Dave
Francis, SACRE Secretary on the new Religious Education syllabus.

Kevin Burnett suggested the Panel add the following items / reports to their
workplan;

Operation Encompass Update

Future of the former Culverhay site

Looked After Children and Exploitation Risks
Virgin Care Update

School Attainment

Autism Board

The Chairman thanked them for these proposals and said that they would be
discussed further by himself and the Vice-Chair at their agenda planning meeting
with the Corporate Director.

18
Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Tuesday, 14th July, 2020



The meeting ended at 1.10 pm

Chair(person)

Prepared by Democratic Services

19
Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Tuesday, 14th July, 2020



